
WHATCOM COUNTY CONTRACT Whatcom County Contract No. 
INFORMATION SHEET

202304015

Originating Department: Executive

Division/ Program: ( i.e. Dept. Division and Program) Emergency Medical Services

Contract or Grant Administrator: Mike Hilley, WCEMS Manager

Contractor' s / Agency Name: Whatcom Fire District 5

Is this a New Contract? If not, is this an Amendment or Renewal to an Existing Contract? Yes() No Q

Yes Q No O If Amendment or Renewal, ( per WCC 3. 08. 100 ( a)) Original Contract #: 

Does contract require Council Approval? Yes (F) No C) If No, include WCC: 

Already approved? Council Approved Date: 4/25/2023 ( Exclusions see: Whatcom County Codes 3. 06. 010, 3. 08. 090 and 3. 08. 100) 

Is this a grant agreement? 
Yes ( F) No O If yes, grantor agency contract number( s): CFDA#: 

Is this contract grant funded? 
Yes O No O If yes, Whatcom County grant contract number( s): 

Is this contract the result of a RFP or Bid process? Contract

Yes ® No Q If yes, RFP and Bid number( s): Cost Center: 

Is this agreement excluded from E-Verify? No Q Yes O If no, include Attachment D Contractor Declaration form. 

IfYES, indicate exclusion( s) below: 

Professional services agreement for certified/ licensed professional.  Goods and services provided due to an emergency
Contract work is for less than $ 100, 000.  Contract for Commercial off the shelf items ( COTS). 

Contract work is for less than 120 days.  Work related subcontract less than $ 25, 000. 

Interlocal Agreement ( between Governments).  Public Works - Local Agency/ Federally Funded FHWA. 

Contract Amount: (sum of original contract Council approval required for; all property leases, contracts or bid awards exceeding
amount and any prior amendments): 40,000, and professional service contract amendments that have an increase greater

61, 755. 39 than $ 10, 000 or 10% of contract amount, whichever is greater, except when: 

This Amendment Amount: 
1. Exercising an option contained in a contract previously approved by the council. 
2. Contract is for design, construction, r-o- w acquisition, prof services, or other

capital costs approved by council in a capital budget appropriation ordinance. 

Total Amended Amount: 3. Bid or award is for supplies. 

4. Equipment is included in Exhibit ` B" of the Budget Ordinance. 

5. Contract is for manufacturer' s technical support and hardware maintenance of

electronic systems and/ or technical support and software maintenance from the

Summary of scope: developer of proprietary software currently used by Whatcom County. 

This ILA will reimburse the Agency with its equitable amount for BLS staffing, equipment, medical
supplies, and other costs directly associated with the Agency' s operation and delivery of BLS services
and an equipment allocation associated with purchase of Stryker Powerloads. 

Term of Contract: January 1, 2023 1 Expiration Date: June 30, 2023
Contract Routing: 

Last edited 07/ 06/ 20

1. Prepared by: Mike Hilley

2. Attorney signoff. C. Quinn

3. AS Finance reviewed: A. Tan

4. IT reviewed ( if IT related): _ 

5. Contractor signed: 

6. Submitted to Exec.: 

7. Council approved ( if necessary): 

8. Executive signed: . 

9. Original to Council: 

AB2023- 236

Date: 3/ 15/ 23

Date: 4/ 17/ 23

Date: 4/ 17/ 23

Date: 

Date: vD Z

rid? iDate: 

Date: 4!2

Date: 

Date: 



U
S N mY ORGI AL. 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

WHATCOM COUNTY EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES

AND

FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 5 ( POINT ROBERTS) 

Whatcom County Contract No. 

202304015

This Interlocal Agreement is between Whatcom County (" County") and Fire Protection District 5

District"), ( collectively the " Parties"), and provides for the one- time distribution of EMS levy funds (the
Funds") to the District for reimbursement of qualifying expenses associated with the provision of Basic

Life Support (" BLS") services in Whatcom County and subject to the terms and conditions contained

herein. 

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Fire District 5 (" District") entered into an Interlocal Agreement for First Response Emergency

Medical Services in Whatcom County for Basic Life Support (" BLS") service in 1984 called the Emergency

Medical Services Agreement Whatcom County and Fire District 5 signed and dated December 26, 1984

and which contract was not identified with a County assigned contract number ( attached here as Exhibit

C); and, 

WHEREAS, the Whatcom County EMS Levy fund was approved by County voters to support the

provision of responsive and effective emergency medical services throughout Whatcom County, 

including those EMS services provided by the District; and, 

WHEREAS, RCW 84.52. 069 provides that funds collected under an EMS levy may be used only for the

provision of emergency medical care or emergency medical services, including related personnel costs, 
training for such personnel, and related equipment, supplies, vehicles and structures needed for the

provision of emergency medical care or emergency medical services; and, 

WHEREAS, on May 24, 2022 the Whatcom County Council allocated up to 6. 4 million dollars of the EMS

Levy funds to the EMS Agencies. The allocation is used to help offset costs of providing EMS service in
2022; and, 

WHEREAS, the EMS Agencies, including the District, have incurred costs and expenses related to the

provision of EMS in Whatcom County that are not otherwise funded and that qualify for reimbursement
from the County EMS fund; and, 

WHEREAS, it is in Whatcom County' s citizenry' s best interest to maintain a fully funded, trained, and

equipped EMS providers to ensure ongoing high- level EMS service in Whatcom County; and, 



WHERAS, it is the intent of the Parties with this Interlocal Agreement is to provide for a one- time

reimbursement to the District for qualifying EMS service expenses incurred between May 24, 2022 and
December 151, 2022; and, 

WHERAS, the Whatcom County Council has approved amending the First Response contract for all

Whatcom County agencies to include Fire Protection District 5 for the county -wide BLS allocation and
reimbursement. Council action dated November 9, 2022 ( Ref: A62022- 628) 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual benefits herein contained, the Parties agree to the

Amend the Interlocal Agreement as follows: 

1. Reimbursement

Whatcom County EMS Levy funds shall be used to reimburse Fire District 5 (" District") for a portion of

those qualifying costs under RCW 84.52.069 incurred by the District between May 24, 2022 and
December 1, 2022 arising from the provision of BLS service delivery in Whatcom under this Agreement

and subject to the following provisions: 

a. The District may only seek reimbursement for those costs: i) incurred between May 24, 2022 and
December 1, 2022 and ii) that are considered a qualifying expense under RCW 84. 52. 069; 
b. The District shall submit to the County a completed and signed 2022 BLS Invoice Form ( Exhibit B) 

in support of any request for reimbursement; 
C. The County shall not reimburse the District for costs and expenses funded or paid for by any
other designated source, including but not limited to Ground Emergency Transport ( GEMT), user charges
and fees, dedicated emergency medical levies or grants; 
d. Reimbursed amounts shall not exceed $ 61, 755.39; Exhibit A. 

e. Qualifying goods and services should be ordered by the Agency no later than November 1, 2022

and must be received by December 31, 2022; 

f. BLS Invoice Forms shall be received by the County no later than June 30, 2023. Exhibit B. 

2. All other terms of the Interlocal Agreement shall remain in full force and effect except as amended by
this Agreement. If a conflict arises between the terms of this Amendment and the Interlocal

Agreement, the terms of this Amendment shall control. 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Interlocal Agreement as of the day and year

written below. 

EXECUTED this Uf*bay of 2023. 

WHATCOM COUNTY

Approved as to form: 

Christopher Quinn per email 4/ 17/ 23 ., 5 iZ,,' 
r

Prosecuting Attorney Date .•` 
lit ehyTA

Approved: = 41b. 
Accepted for Whatcom Courlt o' : 

By: r j.' 'R! 230' L •' 1  

Satpal Sidhu, Wha com County Executive ' 4 NiASH N
STATE OF WASHINGTON

COUNTY OF WHATCOM

On this
V'

day of . 2023, before me personally appeared Satpal Sidhu, to me
known to be the Executive of Whatcom County, who executed the above instrument and who
acknowledged to me the act of signing and sealing thereof. 
J ICE 7I _L

Y PUBLIC in and for the State of Washin ton, residing at
3. My commission expires Z



WHATCOM COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION

DISTRICT NO. 5

For Qualified Expenditures up to a maximum of $61, 755. 39

ATTEST. 

By: 

APPROVED:' 

A

By: 
Chief

By:! 
Com ' scion r

Y
Cgrrlrnission r

Y

Commissioner

DATED this day of J- qNff Zr723



EXHIBIT " A" 

EMS Oversight Board Approved Allocation Schedule 2022

Allocation Detail Totals

Department/ District Equipment Allocation BLS Allocation Total Allocation

District 5 30, 884. 72 30, 870. 67 61, 755. 39

TOTAL: 61, 755. 39



Exhibit " B" 

WCEMS Invoice for Payment
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Exhibit " C" 

Original 1984 Contract

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES AGREEMCN_ T

WHATCOM COLT,-T AND TIRE DISTRICT NO. 5

T1115 ACREEMENT is entered inL-o by and between Wl[ ATCOM

COUNTY, hereinafter referred to as the " County" and Fire District

Pto. 5 , hereinafter referred to as the " Oiatriet", for the

purpose of providing first response emergency medical. services. 

WHEREAS, it is deemed to he in the hest intoresLs of

the citizens of W71ATCOM COUNTY to have available fast and efficient

emergency medical services, and, 

WHEREAS, within areas serviced by fire districts, it. is

often most efficient for the first response of such -. arvices to

be provided by the. districts; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants

contained herein, the parties heroto do agree as follows: 

1. SERVICES

The District agrees to provide first response

Pmergency nedicel aerrices within the boundaries of the District

on behalf of Whatcom Medic: I, as dispatched throu7h the WHAT- COMM

COMMUNICATIONS CENTER, or as otherwise call, rd. " first response

emergency medical services" means such medical tr.p-.atmenL and care

which may be rendered to persons injured, wick or incapacitai:ed

in order to reduce the risk of Loss of life or aggravation of

illness or injury, prior to the avrivaL of Nhatcom Mpdi. c I, or

anolhor licensed ainhulance, srrvire- 

2. CONSIDERATION

As consideration for the services provider by the

District., the Count] agrees to assume_ and make r:9ynent of the

cost of fire Calls transmitted to the District by WHAT- COM

COMMUNICATIONS CENTER for the entire year of 1984 as well as

each year that this a(Ireernent is in existence. 

1- 



3. TERM

This agreement shall commence upcj) execution

by both parties. Provided, however, that this agreement may

bE2 terminated by either party upon sixty ( 60) days written

notice to the other party. 

4 . ASS L( IMM . NTIS UI3l' C N-PRACTING

The District shall not assign or subcontract any

portion of the services provided within the terms of 1_ I• lia acTree- 

ment without ObLaininq prior written apprcyfal cif the County. 

All terms and conditions of tbia agreement shall apply to any
apprfiwed subcontract or assigliment related to this agreement. 

5. RELATIONSHIP Or VIL PARTIES

i

The Tire District No,  is not now, nor has it

ever been, an agent of Whatcom County. The parties do not intend

to have an agency relationship arise from this agreement. Rather, 

the parties intend that an inde) endent contractor/ county relation- 

ship will be create- d by Lhia agreement. The Co'ant>> is i ntQ-f-sted

only in the resulL- s to lit achieVetl. The implementation of

services will lie Solely With the District_ No agent, employee, 

5f.,rvant or represenC.ative of the District shall be doomed to Jac

an agent, employee, servant or reprnsenr. ative of the !' Aunty, No

agent, employee, servant or representative or the Fire District

oh,all be paid by the County Or receive any of the employment benofits

noralally giVen to County emvloyees by the CnunLy. . The Fire District

agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Whatcom County l: rnm any act, 

or omission frow any of its agents. 

6. INSTiRA` aCE

The District shall carry professional l.i.ability

coverage fear the duration of this agreement in as amount not

less than ' rI] REE ? JUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLARS (' 3 ar , QU()) . Tile

District shall also carry a comprehensive liability insuranoe policy in

an amount not IeFE than THREE HUNDRED THOUSAND IX7LLARS ($ 300. 000). 

2- 



r

The Con Lrdctni: irjr,` ns to not iFy Whatc.(, it) Cr_LMI. Y in

writing 1:> ,- anY notic(,'? of cancellation : inrlior c- hange in . Overage

or moditication. Each jnsurancp policy shall have a thirty ( 30) 

day cancellation notice in the event of termination or rnatoria] 

modification. The Contractor shall secure a certifi%.ate of

Insurance navtLriq 111katco] Rt Count' as an " additional Insured" 

pri^ r to the. signing of this 1201ttract. 

7. 1NOERNIf irCATION AND li0LD- HARr1T R5.5

The District shall proLc- ct, defend and save harm- 

less and indcmnify the County Erom and against all claims, suits

and actiors arising From negligent acts Or Of the

District or o" thorizeCL subcontracl- ors, and the agents of em- 

PLovees t;) f eieher in the performancc of this agreeneent. In the

c, voiit lhaL the County is required to institute legal action . and/ car

oar.ti:-:ioate in legal action to enforce this clause, the District

agrees co -' a; r the CounLy' s legal fei s, costs and di sbursement. s

incurred in establishinc the right.5 conferred hurcin. 

c. MODIFICATION

No change or addition to this agreement shall tee

v,:Ilid or binding upon either party unless such change or adrlitie, n

re. i n t+r j. A. ng, executed by both parties, 

9. TERMINATION

Natwithstanding any sthc-r termination orovinien of

this aqrOOMORL, if the District fails to G0mplgr With the terms

and conditions of this the Count.,' may pursue Guch

rr--medic-•s as arc legally available including, but n,ot 1 invited to, 

the sLjGper; SiUtj or tcrminat' on of this agreetnevt. Such suspension

c> r termination shall be effeetive upon thirC. V ( 3{ l days Written

notifiea?: ion to thn Di gtrict. 
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